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VISION

Creating Investment Solutions within
everyone’s reach




Mission
&

Core Values

To create a conducive working enviroment, to attract the best talent i
the Asset Management Sector. ABLAMC strives to be th
choice' for young and experienced talent.

To set the highest industry standards in terms of produc
innovations, in order to offer products for clients of all de
To adhere to the highest industry standard for integrit
across all the spheres of the company.

To use technology and financial structuring to serve as a "c
compared to the competition.

To enhance Stakeholders Value.
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The Board of Directors of ABL Asset Management Company Limited, the management company of ABL Income

Fund (ABL-IF), is pleased to present the Audited Financial Statements of ABL Income Fund for the year ended
on June 30, 2021.

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Lockdown coupled with supply side issues created inflationary pressure in the country as we witnessed a CPI of
8.59%Y0oY in Jun'20 after achieving 11-month low inflation of 8.22%YoY in May'20. On a monthly basis, inflation
inched up by 0.81% compared to 0.32% increase in the preceding month. The food prices witnessed a sharp
increase during the month. The average NCPI for FY20 clocked-in at 10.76%Y0Y against 6.80%YoY in the SPLY.
That said, we estimate the average NCPI for FY21 to settle around 7.3%YoY.
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The curtailment in current account deficit (CAD) paved the way to a stable BOP position; coming down by 74%YoY
to USD 3.28bn during 11MFY20. The imports dropped by 20%YoY to USD 46.63bn while the budged by a mere
7%YoY, despite global lockdown, to USD 25.99bn during 11MFY20. However, worker remittances reported an
increase of 6%YoY to reach at USD 23.12bn. Threat to worker remittances seems to be over in our view as
economic activity is picking up around the globe. However, the CAD may increase in coming months primarily
due to higher oil import bill owing to rising international oil prices and permission granted by the Govt. to import
furnace oil to cater power demand in the country. Foreign exchange reserves of the country stand at USD 18.79bn
as at July 03, 2020; providing an import cover of ~3.09 months. To fight the pandemic, various international
institutions including IMF, ADP, WB and the Paris Club along with friendly countries have come forward to help
Pakistan resulting in stabilize reserves. On the fiscal side, during FY20, provisional tax collection has reached to
PKR 3.98tn, reflecting an increase of ~4%YoY. During the month of Jun'20, tax collection stood at PKR 420bn
against its revised target of PKR 398bn.
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Pakistan has reported a negative GDP growth -0.4%YoY in FY20 plunging from 3.3%YoY in FY19. The pandemic
has severely affected the economic activities in the 2QCY20; thereby economy could not sustain the positive
growth. During the period of Jul-Apr 2020, the large scale manufacturing (LSM) decimated significantly by
8.96%YoY compared to a 2.82% decline in the SPLY. The major contributors to decline were the Textile (-8.68%),
Coke and Petroleum Products (21.15%), Iron and Steel Products (-15.68%), Automobile (-41.90%), Pharmaceuticals
(-5.31%), and Electronics (-19.74%). Envisaging the condition of the industry and the economy, the government
decided to pursue a smart lockdown where all major industries have been allowed to operate. We expect this to
avoid GDP contraction in the next financial year; however, the growth rate is not expected to be impressive.

Going forward, especially in the short run, the direction of the market will be set by the upcoming results and the
situation of coronavirus pandemic in the country; and its impact on the economy. The incentives announced by
the government to support the industry are expected to materialize in the rest of CY20. The prominent ones are
the grace period on debt principal to help manage the cash flows while the construction package to boost economic
activities; and to create jobs in the country. Apart from these, the policy rate has been reduced substantially to 7%,
another big relief to leveraged industries and consumers.

MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY REVIEW

Total Assets under management (AUMSs) of open end mutual fund posted a substantial growth of 38% during FY20
from PKR 572bn to PKR 788bn, mainly on account of massive inflow in money market fund and fixed income
fund. Money market fund including conventional and Islamic, witnessed immense growth of 92% to close the
period at PKR 318bn. AUMs of fixed income fund both conventional and Shariah compliant swelled by 66%
during the said period. This growth can primarily be attributed to investor's appetite for earning high profits in
contractionary monetary policy environment during 9MFY20. In contrast to fixed income, equity market AUMs
have declined by 5% during this period. Lock down in country and incremental number of cases of coronavirus
makes investor wary regarding investment in risky assets. Turbulence in equity market due to COVID-19 and
uncertainty in international oil prices during FY20 contributed in decreasing AUMs of equity funds.

OBJECTIVE

The objective of ABL Income Fund is to earn superior risk adjusted rate of return by investing in a blend of short,
medium and long term debt instruments, both within and outside Pakistan.

MONEY MARKET REVIEW

Key interest rates throughout the year remained unchanged with policy rate maintained at 7.00%. Interest rates
were maintained as a part of accommodative policy measures to ensure revival of growth.
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While the interest rates remained unchanged, frequent changes were witnessed in primary market cut-off yields
for both T-bills & PIBs. The yield curve remained normal steep due to widening of spreads between shorter &
medium tenor instruments. As a result, expansion in KIBOR spreads was also witnessed. During the year 6M
KIBOR increased from 7.03% to 7.61%.

During FY21, Government of Pakistan sold a total of PKR 14.50 trillion worth of T-bills against a total maturity
of PKR 14.20 trillion with cut off yields ranging from 6.43% to 7.44% for 3M T-bills, 6.47% to 7.75% for 6M
T-bills & 6.55 to 7.99% for 12M T-bills respectively. The vast shift in cut-off yields is reflective of market's
expectation for a possible change in Policy Rate. The Cut off yields at the end of FY21 settled at 7.31%, 7.58%
& 7.79% for 3, 6 & 12M respectively.

Apart from T-bills, GoP also sold a total of PKR 961 billion worth of Fixed Rate Pakistan Investment bonds. Tenor
wise break up shows maximum participation & acceptance in 5Y bond of PKR 410 billion while the acceptance
amounts 3 & 10 years also remained healthy at PKR 377.10 & PKR 173 billion respectively. The most recent cut
off rates for 3Y, 5Y & 10Y bonds were 8.69%, 9.20%. Wide variations in Cut off rates were however witnessed
during the auctions of 5 & 10Y cut off yields.

During the year, MTS market remained active with borrowing rates hovering in the range of 9.00% - 15.00%.
FUND PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, ABL IF generated an annualized return of 4.76% against the benchmark return of
7.41% thereby underperforming the benchmark by 265bps.

During the year, Net Assets of ABL Income Fund increased to PKR 8.516 billion as compared to PKR 1.490 billion
as on June 30, 2020. At fund had 0.64% exposure in T-bills, 15.26% exposure in MTS, 9.12% exposure in TFCs,
while 68.27% of the funds exposure was placed as cash at the end of June'21.

ADDITIONAL MATTERS

1. The detail of Directors of the Management Company is disclosed in this Annual Report.

2. Financial Statements present fairly the state of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows and the changes
in unit holder's fund;

3. Proper books of accounts of the Fund have been maintained.

4. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments;

5. Relevant International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, provisions of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 & Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008, requirements of the Trust Deed and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of the financial statements;

6. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;
7. There have been no significant doubts upon the Funds' ability to continue as going concern;

8. Performance table of the Fund is given on page # of the Annual Report;
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9. There is no statutory payment on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges outstanding other than already
disclosed in the financial statements;

10. The statement as to the value of investments of Provident Fund is not applicable in the case of the Fund as
employees retirement benefits expenses are borne by the Management Company;

11. The pattern of unit holding as at June 30, 2021 is given in note No. of the Financial Statements.
AUDITORS

M/s Yousuf Adil (Chartered Accountants), have been re-appointed as auditors for the year ending June 30, 2022
for ABL Income Fund (ABL-IF).

FUND STABILITY RATING

On December 31, 2020: VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) has upgraded the Fund Stability Rating (FSR)
of ABL Income Fund (ABL IF) to 'A+ (f)' (Single A plus (f)) from 'A (f)' (Single A (f)).

MANAGEMENT QUALITY RATING

On December 31, 2020: VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) has maintained the Management Quality
Rating (MQR) of ABL Asset Management Company (ABL AMC) at 'AM2++' (AM-Two-Double Plus). Outlook
on the assigned rating has been revised from 'Stable' to 'Positive'.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

Despite improving economic numbers and business confidence uncertainty created by the on-going fourth Covid-
19 wave in Pakistan and the global spread of new variants resulted in a continued emphasis on supporting the
recovery through accommodative monetary policy. As a result policy rate remained unchanged throughout the year
at 7%.

Going forward we expect the interest rates to be maintained at the current level of 7.00% at least till the end of
the second quarter of FY22. The fund's strategy will be to trade T-bills actively while taking maximum advantage
of any mispricing along the short to medium terms portion of the yield curve. In order to generate alpha the fund
shall take exposure in MTS and Spread Transactions while continue to take/maintain trading positions in PIBs.
In addition to this the fund will keep investing in high yield instruments with a tenor of 3-6 months and place funds
at special deposit rates offered by bank at quarter and year end.

ABL Income Fund Performance FY-2021

Yield 4.76%
Benchmark 6 Months KIBOR Average 7.41%
Weighted Average Time to Maturity of Net Assets (days) 133.6
Asset under management as at June 30,2020 (PKR mn) 8516.13
Closing NAV per unit as on June 30,2020 (PKR) (Ex-Dividend) 10.0917
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OBJECTIVE
The objective of ABL Income Fund is to earn superior risk adjusted rate of return by investing in a blend of short,
medium and long term debt instruments, both within and outside Pakistan.

MONEY MARKET REVIEW

Key interest rates throughout the year remained unchanged with policy rate maintained at 7.00%. Interest rates
were maintained as a part of accommodative policy measures to ensure revival of growth.

While the interest rates remained unchanged, frequent changes were witnessed in primary market cut-off yields
for both T-bills & PIBs. The yield curve remained normal steep due to widening of spreads between shorter &
medium tenor instruments. As a result, expansion in KIBOR spreads was also witnessed. During the year 6M
KIBOR increased from 7.03% to 7.61%.

During FY21, Government of Pakistan sold a total of PKR 14.50 trillion worth of T-bills against a total maturity
of PKR 14.20 trillion with cut off yields ranging from 6.43% to 7.44% for 3M T-bills, 6.47% to 7.75% for 6M
T-bills & 6.55 to 7.99% for 12M T-bills respectively. The vast shift in cut-off yields is reflective of market's
expectation for a possible change in Policy Rate. The Cut off yields at the end of FY21 settled at 7.31%, 7.58%
& 7.79% for 3, 6 & 12M respectively.

Apart from T-bills, GoP also sold a total of PKR 961 billion worth of Fixed Rate Pakistan Investment bonds. Tenor
wise break up shows maximum participation & acceptance in 5Y bond of PKR 410 billion while the acceptance
amounts 3 & 10 years also remained healthy at PKR 377.10 & PKR 173 billion respectively. The most recent cut
off rates for 3Y, 5Y & 10Y bonds were 8.69%, 9.20%. Wide variations in Cut off rates were however witnessed
during the auctions of 5 & 10Y cut off yields.

During the year, MTS market remained active with borrowing rates hovering in the range of 9.00% - 15.00%.
FUND PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, ABL IF generated an annualized return of 4.76% against the benchmark return of
7.41% thereby underperforming the benchmark by 265bps.

During the year, Net Assets of ABL Income Fund increased to PKR 8.516 billion as compared to PKR 1.490 billion
as on June 30, 2020. At fund had 0.64% exposure in T-bills, 15.26% exposure in MTS, 9.12% exposure in TFCs,
while 68.27% of the funds exposure was placed as cash at the end of June'21.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

Despite improving economic numbers and business confidence uncertainty created by the on-going fourth Covid-
19 wave in Pakistan and the global spread of new variants resulted in a continued emphasis on supporting the
recovery through accommodative monetary policy. As a result policy rate remained unchanged throughout the year
at 7%.
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Going forward we expect the interest rates to be maintained at the current level of 7.00% at least till the end of
the second quarter of FY22. The fund's strategy will be to trade T-bills actively while taking maximum advantage
of any mispricing along the short to medium terms portion of the yield curve. In order to generate alpha the fund
shall take exposure in MTS and Spread Transactions while continue to take/maintain trading positions in PIBs.
In addition to this the fund will keep investing in high yield instruments with a tenor of 3-6 months and place funds
at special deposit rates offered by bank at quarter and year end.
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June 2021 June 2020 June 2019 June 2018 June 2017 June 2016
---------------------- (Rupees in '000)------========nre=uun

Net Assets 8,516,128 1,490,933 1,692,901 2,810,027 3,875,373 3,734,490

Net Income 179,712 226,156 132,149 167,989 83,802 123,060
---------------------- (Rupees per unit)----------------------
Net Assets value 10.0917 10.0810 10.0717 10.5036 10.0354 10.0292
Interim distribution* 0.3099 - 0.4438 - - 0.7171
Final distribution 0.1543 1.4354 0.7034 - 0.5631 -
Distribution date final June 28,2021 June 29,2020 June 26,2019 - June 20,2017 -
Closing offer price 10.2673 10.2564 10.2228 10.6611 10.1859 10.1796
Closing repurchase price 10.0917 10.0810 10.0717 10.5036 10.0354 10.0292
Highest offer price 10.5776 11.7216 10.9246 10.6551 10.7215 10.8645
Lowest offer price 10.1560 10.2258 10.2259 10.1896 10.1454 10.1578
Highest repurchase price per unit 10.3967 11.5484 10.7632 10.4976 10.5631 10.7039
Lowest repurchase price per unit 9.9823 10.0747 10.0748 10.039 9.9955 10.0077
Total return of the fund
- capital growth 0.12% -0.04% -4.35% 4.67% 0.23% 0.02%
- income distribution 4.64% 14.35% 11.47% 0.00% 5.63% 717%
Average Annual return of the fund
First Year 4.76% 14.32% 7.12% 4.67% 5.86% 7.19%
Second Year 9.89% 11.23% 6.06% 5.40% 6.74% 11.20%
Third Year 9.43% 9.40% 6.23% 6.26% 9.86% 10.81%
Fourth Year 8.57% 8.93% 6.81% 8.91% 10.05% 11.38%
Fifth Year 8.43% 9.09% 9.06% 9.35% 10.81% 12.50%
Sixth Year 8.73% 11.02% 9.53% 10.20% 12.01% 13.52%
Seventh Year 10.57% 11.39% 10.39% 11.44% 13.09% 14.48%
Eighth Year 11.03% 12.18% 11.61% 12.63% 14.15% -
Ninth Year 11.87% 13.40% 12.74% 13.68% - -
Tenth Year 13.11% 14.55% 13.90% - - -
Eleventh Year 14.36% 15.75% - - - -
Twelveth Year 15.52% - - - - -
Since Inception 17.07% 17.27% 15.35% 15.14% 15.60% 15.16%
Weighted average Portfolio
duration in days 134 1108 813 592 630 803
Distribution History*
2021 2019 2017 2016
Rate Rate Rate Rate
Date ‘ ‘ Re. Per Unit Date ‘ | Re. Per Unit Date ‘ ‘ Re. Per Unit Date ‘ ‘ Re. Per Unit
April 11, 2021 0.3099 July 3, 2018 0.3588 June 20, 2017 0.5631 June 20, 2016 0.1195
June 28, 2021 0.1543 August 1, 2018 0.0850 June 24, 2016 0.5976
June 26, 2019 0.7034
Disclaimer
Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
ABL INCOME FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of ABL
Income Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that ABL Asset Management Company
Limited being the Management Company of the Fund has in all material respects
managed the Fund during the year ended June 30, 2021 in accordance with the
provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company
under the constitutive documents of the Fund;

(i) The pricing. issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance
with the requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iii) ~ The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules,
2003, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 and the constitutive documents of the Fund.

Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 15, 2021
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€ YOUSUF ADIL Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accountants

134-A, Abu Bakar Block
New Garden Town

Lahore

Pakistan

Tel: +92 (0) 42 3591 3595-7
Fax:+92 (0) 42 3544 0521
www yousufadil com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS OF ABL INCOME FUND
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ABL Income Fund (the Fund), which comprise the statement
9f assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2021, and the income statement, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of movement in unit holders' fund and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Fund as at June 30, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund and ABL
Asset Management Company Limited (the Management Company) in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Existence of bank balances We performed the following procedures to address
the matter:

As disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements,
bank balances amounting of Rs. 5,960 million as at
June 30, 2021.

+ Obtained independent confirmations for the
existence of bank balance as at June 30, 2021
and traced balance in these confirmation with

_— books and record of the Fund. Where such

Bank balances constitute the most significant confirmations were not availeble, alternate

component of net assets. procedures were performed.

* Obtain bank reconciliations and tested

The existence of bank balances of the Fund as at |~ 00 ciling items on a sample basis.

June 30, 2021 were considered a high risk area and
therefore we considered this as key audit matter.
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Yousuf Adil

® YOUSUF ADIL R

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 were audited by another firm of
gzaét;zrgd Accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion thereon vide their report dated September

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Management Company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
inforrr?a;lon Included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management Company and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Management Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such
internal control as the Management Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management Company is responsible for assessing the Fund's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management Company either intends to liquidate the
Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company are responsible for overseeing the Fund's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

An Independent Comespandent Firm to
Delortte Touche Tohmatsy Limited
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«  Obtain an understanding of interal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Management Company's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management Company.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management Company’s use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves falr presentation.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company, we
determine those matters that is of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Rana M. Usman Khan.

Yol AdX
Chartered Accountants

Place: Lahore
Date: September 28, 2021 mwn
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ABL INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021
2021 2020

Note ------—--—-- Rupees in '000-------------
Assets
Bank balances 4 5,960,065 103,320
Investments 5 978,769 1,370,154
Receivable against Margin Trading System 6 1,356,897 -
Receivable against sale of units 208,520 -
Interest / profit accrued 7 48,199 27,400
Deposits and other receivables 8 189,785 43,072
Total assets 8,742,235 1,543,946
Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Management Company 9 29,902 28,050
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 10 658 129
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 589 344
Payable against redemption of units 45,189 55
Payable against purchase of investments 129,032 -
Dividend payable - 2
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 20,737 24,433
Total liabilities 226,107 53,013
NET ASSETS 8,516,128 1,490,933
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 8,516,128 1,490,933
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13

----------- Number of units-------------.
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 843,874,569 147,895,943
Rupees
NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 10.0917 10.0810
The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)
Sl Diest
Sa(i’ib Matin Aleg Khalid Ghraznavi Pervaiz Iqba’lQButt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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ABL INCOME FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note -----------—- Rupees in '000 ---------—--
Income
Interest / profit earned 14 236,388 221,998
Other income 1,533 2,408
(Loss) / gain on sale of investments - net (16,208) 42,604
Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments classified
as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' 5.9 4,110 5,732
(12,098) 48,336
225,823 272,742
Expenses
Remuneration of ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Management Company 9.1 26,796 25,769
Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 9.2 4,287 4,123
Accounting and operational charges 9.4 2,068 3,658
Selling and marketing expenses 9.5 3,353 6,870
Remuneration of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 10.1 2,207 1,295
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 10.2 287 168
Annual fees to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11.1 589 344
Securities transaction cost 5,028 2,997
Auditors' remuneration 15 511 648
Annual rating fee 306 312
Annual listing fee 52 27
Printing charges 74 99
Legal and professional charges 283 151
Bank charges 270 125
Total operating expenses 46,111 46,586
Net income for the year before taxation 179,712 226,156
Taxation 17 - -
Income for the year after taxation 179,712 226,156
Earnings per unit 18
Allocation of net income for the year
Net income for the year after taxation 179,712 226,156
Income already paid on units redeemed (25,952) (76,935)
153,760 149,221
Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains - 48,336
- Excluding capital gains 153,760 100,885
153,760 149,221
The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)
Soprad Dot
Saqib Matin Aleg Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal'Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
A:SL‘INCiOéE Fllj!]i .( AABL Asset Management

Discover the potential

Page 17




ABL INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Income for the year after taxation 179,712 226,156

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 179,712 226,156

The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

S s

Sa({ib Matin Aleg Khalid Ghraznavi Pervaiz Iqba)lQButt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
ABL-IF v
ABL-INCOME FUND i ABL Asset Management

Discover the potential




ABL INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

[ 2021 | [ 2020 |
(Rupees in '000)
. Un- . Un-
Capital | tributed | Total Capital | o tributed | Total
Value . Value .
income income
Net assets at the beginning of the year 1,467,105 23,828 1,490,933 1,670,335 22,566 1,692,901
Issue of 1,127,659,055 (2020: 166,739,175) units
Capital value (at ex - net asset value per unit) 11,371,254 - 11,371,254 1,679,349 - 1,679,349
Element of income 182,121 - 182,121 105,045 - 105,045
Total proceeds on issuance of units 11,553,375 - 11,553,375 1,784,394 - 1,784,394
Redemption of 431,680,429 (2020: 186,927,962) units
Capital value (at ex - net asset value per unit) 4,353,550 - 4,353,550 1,882,685 - 1,882,685
Element of loss 25,317 25,952 51,269 64,796 76,935 141,731
Total payments on redemption of units 4,378,867 25,952 4,404,819 1,947,481 76,935 2,024,416
Total comprehensive income for the year - 179,712 179,712 - 226,156 226,156
Distribution for the year ended June 30, 2021
-Re. 0.3099 per unit on April 11, 2021 (128,026) (50,108) (178,134) - - -
-Re. 0.1543 per unit on June 28, 2021
(2020: 1.4354 per unit on June 29, 2020) (25,521) (99,418) (124,939) (40,143) (147,959) (188,102)
Net income for the period less distribution (153,547) (149,526) (303,073) (40,143) (147,959) (188,102)
Net assets at the end of the year 8,488,066 28,062 8,516,128 1,467,105 23,828 1,490,933
Undistributed income brought forward
- Realised income 18,096 35,522
- Unrealised income / (loss) 5,732 (12,956)
23,828 22,566
Accounting income available for distribution
-Relating to capital gains - 48,336
-Excluding capital gains 153,760 100,885
153,760 149,221
Distribution during the year (149,526) (147,959)
Undistributed income carried forward 28,062 23,828
Undistributed income carried forward
- Realised income 23,952 18,096
- Unrealised income 4,110 5,732
28,062 23,828
Rupees Rupees
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 10.0810 10.0717
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 10.0917 10.0810

The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

S s

Saqib Matin Alee Khalid GhaZnavi Pervaiz Iqbal'Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
ABL-IF r
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ABL INCOME FUND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note -----—meemmmme Rupees in '000 --------—------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year before taxation 179,712 226,156
Adjustments for:
Interest / profit earned 14 (236,388) (221,998)
Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments classified
as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' 59 (4,110) (5,732)
Other income (1,533) -
(242,031) (227,730)
Increase in assets
Deposits and other receivables (146,713) (8,980)
Receivable against Margin Trading System (1,356,897) -
(1,503,610) (8,980)
(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Management Company 1,852 (715)
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 529 (116)
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 245 (1,190)
Dividend payable ?) 1
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (3,696) 13,332
(1,072) 11,312
(1,567,001) 758
Interest received 217,122 229,118
Net amount received / (paid) on purchase and sale of investments 524,527 (339,495)
Net cash used in operating activities (825,352) (109,619)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net receipts from issuance of units 11,191,308 1,744,251
Net payments against redemption of units (4,359,685) (2,026,036)
Cash pay-out against distribution (149,526) (147,959)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 6,682,097 (429,744)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,856,745 (539,363)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 103,320 642,683
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 5,960,065 103,320
The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)
Sl Baest
Saqib Matin Aleg Khalid Ghraznavi Pervaiz Iqbal'Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
A%LAIQO’JE HIJ!; .( AABL Asset Management
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ABL INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

ABL Income Fund (the Fund) is an open ended mutual fund constituted under a Trust Deed entered into on June 16, 2008 between ABL
Asset Management Company as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the Trustee. The Trust
Deed has been revised through the Deed of Change of Trustee and the First and Second Supplemental Trust Deeds dated September 30,
2010 and July 29, 2011 respectively with the approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Furthermore, the
Offering Document of the Fund has been revised through the First, Second, Third and Fourth Supplements dated November 1, 2010,
September 20, 2011, December 20, 2011, and July 30, 2013 respectively with the approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP). The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) authorised constitution of the Trust Deed vide letter
no. NBFC - II/VS/ ABL/ 447/ 2008 dated June 06, 2008 in accordance with the requirement of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulation, 2008.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under the Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) through a certificate of registration issued by the SECP. The
registered office of the Management Company is situated at Plot No. 14, Main Boulevard, DHA Phase 6, Lahore. The Management Company
is a member of the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).

The Fund has been categorised as an open ended income scheme by the Board of Directors of the Management Company pursuant to the
provisions contained in Circular 7 of 2009 and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The units of the Fund were initially offered
for public subscription at a par value of Rs 10 per unit. Thereafter, the units are being offered for public subscription on a continuous basis
from September 20, 2008 and are transferable and redeemable by surrendering them to the Fund.

The objective of the Fund is to earn superior risk adjusted rate of return by investing in a blend of short, medium and long-term instruments,
both within and outside Pakistan which the Fund aims to deliver mainly by investing in equity securities, government securities, cash in
bank accounts, money market placements, deposits, Certificates of Deposits, Term Deposit Receipts, commercial papers, term finance
certificates / sukuks, spread transactions other absolute return instruments that may be allowed by the SECP. The investment objectives
and policies are explained in the Fund's offering document.

The title to the assets of the Fund's held in the name of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the Trustee of the Fund.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984; and

- the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984, the
NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations
and the requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are effective in the current year
There are certain amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that are mandatory for the Fund's annual accounting
period beginning on July 1, 2020. However, these do not have any significant impact on the Fund's operations and, therefore, have not
been detailed in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective

The following amendments to published accounting and reporting standards would be effective from the dates mentioned below against
the respective amendments:
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a)  New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2021

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2021. These standards, amendments
and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's
financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.
Effective date (accounting
periods beginning on or after)
- Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions June 01, 2020
- Amendments to the conceptual framework for financial reporting, including
amendments to references to the conceptual framework in IFRS January 01, 2020

- Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a business January 01, 2020

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' - Definition of material January 01, 2020

- Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments', IAS 39 'Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement' and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Interest rate benchmark reform January 01, 2020
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

b)  New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date
mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's
operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date (accounting
periods beginning on or after)

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,

IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions extended
beyond June 30, 2021

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual framework
Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' -
Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

Amendments to TAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of liabilities
as current or non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' -
Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to 'TAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising
from a single transaction.

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also issued

January 01, 2021

April 01, 2021
January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts
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24 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates, judgments and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in
the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Fund relate to classification, valuation and
impairment of financial assets (notes 3.2 and 5) and provision for taxation (notes 3.12 and 17).

2.5 Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments have been carried at fair values.
2.6 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund operates.
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee, which is the Fund's functional and presentation currency.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been applied
consistently to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents
These comprise balances with banks in savings and current accounts..
3.2 Financial assets
3.2.1 Classification and subsequent measurement
Debt instruments
IFRS 9 has provided a criteria for debt securities whereby these debt securities are either classified as:
- amortised cost
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
based on the business model of the entity.
However, IFRS 9 also provides an option whereby securities managed as a portfolio or group of assets and whose performance is measured
on a fair value basis, to be recognised at FVTPL. Therefore the management considers its investment in debt securities as being managed
as a group of assets and hence has classified them as FVTPL.
3.2.2 Impairment
The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds the recoverable amount.
3.2.3 Impairment loss on debt securities
Provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of time-based criteria as prescribed by the SECP and based on management's
assessment made in line with its provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company in accordance with

the guidelines issued by the SECP. Impairment losses recognised on debt securities can be reversed through the Income Statement.

As allowed by the SECP, the Management Company may make provision against debt securities over and above the minimum provision
requirement prescribed by the SECP, in accordance with the provisioning policy duly approved by the Board of Directors.

3.2.4 Regular way contracts

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date on which the Fund commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases / sales of assets require delivery of securities within two days from the transaction date as per the
stock exchange regulations.
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3.2.5 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. These are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss'. Financial assets carried
'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are recognised in the Income Statement.
3.2.6  Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are valued as follows:
a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available-for-sale financial assets
Basis of valuation of debt securities
The investments of the Fund in debt securities are valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
(MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology prescribed by the SECP for valuation of debt securities. In the determination of the
rates MUFAP takes into account the holding pattern of these securities and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded
securities.

Basis of valuation of government securities

The investments of the Fund in government securities are valued on the basis of rates announced by the Financial Markets Association
of Pakistan.

Basis of valuation of equity securities

The investments of the Fund in equity securities are valued on the basis of closing quoted market prices available at the stock exchange.
A security listed on the stock exchange is valued at the closing price determined by such exchange in accordance with its regulations.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are taken
to the Income Statement.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as 'available for sale' are taken to statement
of comprehensive income until these are derecognised or impaired. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income is transferred to the Income Statement.

b) Loans and receivables
These are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses are recognised in the Income Statement through the amortisation process or when the financial assets carried at
amortised cost are derecognised or impaired.

3.2.7 Impairment

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds the recoverable amount.

a)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Impairment loss on debt securities

Provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of time-based criteria as prescribed by the SECP and based on
management's assessment made in line with its provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company
in accordance with the guidelines issued by the SECP. Impairment losses recognised on debt securities can be reversed through the
Income Statement.

As allowed by the SECP, the Management Company may make provision against debt securities over and above the minimum
provision requirement prescribed by the SECP, in accordance with the provisioning policy duly approved by the Board of Directors.

Impairment loss on equity securities

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of equity securities below their cost is considered as an objective evidence of
impairment. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is removed therefrom and included in the Income Statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity
securities are only reversed when the equity securities are derecognised.
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b) Loans and receivables

For financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables', a provision for impairment is established when there is an objective evidence
that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The amount of the provision is determined
based on the provisioning criteria specified by the SECP.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets is taken
to the Income Statement.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement each derivative instrument is remeasured
to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the Income Statement.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. These are
initially recognised at fair values and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of financial liabilities is taken to the Income Statement.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 'Statement of Assets and Liabilities' when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by dividing the net assets of the
Fund by the number of units in circulation at the year end.

Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the application received by the Management
Company / distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as of the close
of the business day, plus the allowable sales load and provision of any duties and charges if applicable. The sales load is payable to the
Management Company / distributors.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price applicable to units for which the Management Company / distributors receive redemption
application during business hours of that day. The redemption price is equal to NAV as of the close of the business day, less an amount as
the Management Company may consider to be an appropriate provision of duties and charges.

Distributions to unit holders

Distributions to the unit holders are recognised upon declaration and approval by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.
Based on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented by the SECP, distribution for the year also
include portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the year.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recognised in the financial
statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

Element of income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the case may be, of
units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further, the element of income is a transaction
of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend
net asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders
fund will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.
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5.1

Revenue recognition
- Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are recorded at the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Income from investments in term finance certificates / sukuks and government securities is recognised on an accrual basis using
effective interest method.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'
are recorded in the period in which these arise.

- Interest income on bank balances, term deposits and placements is recognised on an accrual basis.
- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
Expenses

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement each derivative instrument is remeasured
to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the Income Statement.

All expenses including management fee and trustee fee are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised

or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders in cash.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Earnings per unit

Earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net income of the year before taxation of the Fund by the weighted average number of units
outstanding during the year. The determination of earning per unit is not practicable as disclosed in note 18.

Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end
exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement.

2021 2020
BANK BALANCES Note  ==mmmmmememm Rupees in '000 ------------
Balances with banks in:
Savings accounts 4.1 5,960,065 103,320

This includes balance of Rs 4,807.91 million (2020: Rs 18.055 million) maintained with Allied Bank Limited (a related party) that carries
profit at 7.83% (2020: 13.40%) per annum. Other profit and loss sharing accounts of the Fund carry profit rates ranging from 5.00% to
8.50% per annum (2020: 8.00% to 13.75% per annum).

2021 2020

INVESTMENTS Note  ——-mmmmm- Rupees in '000 ---------—--
At fair value through profit or loss
Term deposit receipts 5.1 100,000 -
Term finance certificates - unlisted 5.2 797,682 383,901
Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 53 56,061 269,609
Government securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds 5.4 25,026 644,138
Corporate sukuk certificates 5.5 - 62,670
Commercial Paper 5.6 - 9,836
GOP Ijarah sukuks 5.7 - -
Deliverable Futures Contract 5.8 - -

978,769 1,370,154

This includes balance of Rs 100 million (2020: Nill) and is placed with Bank Alfalah Limited at the rate of 7.68%.
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Term Finance Certificates - unlisted

Asat | Purchased Disposed of Carrying Market value Unrei.lllsled Market valueas a Market value as a| Investment as a
. X matured | As at June 30, |valueasat appreciation/ | percentage of total
Name of the investee company July 1, | during the R asatJune30,| U percentage of net | percentage of
2020 ar during the 2021 June 30, 0l (diminution) as at | market value of assets tofal issue size
y year 2021 June 30, 2021 investments
------------- Number of Certificat Rupees in '000 Percentag
Commercial Banks
Bank of Punjab TFC 1,440 75 435 1,080 105911 108,884 2973 11.12% 1.28% 432%
(Face value of 100,000 per certificate)
Bank of Punjab TFC - 800 800 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
(Face value of 100,000 per certificate)
1S Bank TFC 30,850 38,100 29,500 39450 194610 193,778 (832) 19.80% 228% 6.58%
(Face value of 5,000 per certificate)
Bank Al Habib Ltd. TFC 35,000 5,000 30,000 150225 151,076 851 15.44% L77% 5.00%
(Face value of 5,000 per certificate)
Soneri Bank Limited TFC - 39,560 5,000 34560 172420 172420 17.62% 2.02% 5.76%
(Face value of 5,000 per certificate)
U Microfinance Bank Limited TFC - 1,000 1,000 100,000 100,000 10.22% L17% 0.83%
(Face value of 5,000 per certificate)
Investment Companies
Jahangir Siddiqui Company Limited 30,000 - 30,000 68,583 71,524 2,941 731% 0.84% 10.00%
(Face value of 5,000 per certificate)
Total 62,290 114,535 40,735 136,090 791,749 797,682 5933 81.51% 9.36%
Total - June 30, 2020 389,933 383,901 (6,032) 25.75% 28.02%
521 The cost of unlisted term finance certificates as at June 30, 2021 is Rs. 794.56 million (2020: Rs.392.25 million)
522 The terms and conditions of unlisted term finance certificates outstanding as at June 30, 2021 are as follows:
Name of the Investee Company ‘ Rating ‘ Tenure Profit pay‘m ents./ principal | - Secured | | Issue date ‘ Maturity date Rate of return
)\ unsecured
COMMERCIAL BANKS
Bank of Punjab AA 10 years Semi-annually Unsecured ~ December 2016 December 2026 6 month KIBOR + 1.00%
IS Bank Limited At 7 years Semi-annually Unsecured ~ December 2016 December 2023 6 month KIBOR + 1.40%
Bank Al Habib Limited AA 10 years Semi-annually Unsecured ~ December 2018 December 2028 6 month KIBOR + 1.00%
Soneri Bank Limited A+ 8 years Semi-annually Secured July 2015 July 2023 6 month KIBOR + 1.35%
U Microfinance Bank Limited AA- 7 years Semi-annually Unsecured June 2021 June 2028 6 month KIBOR + 1.35%
INVESTMENT COMPANIES
Jahangir Siddiqui Company Limited AA+ 5 years Semi-annually Secured July 2017 July 2022 6 month KIBOR + 1.40%
53 Government securities - Market Treasury Bills
Face Value (Rupees in '000) Rupees in '000 Percentage
Tenor As at July ];:::;i:: Sold / matured |As at June i:f;y.l]l:lgn:ﬂ;;le Market value as at| ~ Unrealised M::f::::;::fs 2 ?;:t::;:;::fs
. ' 3 .
1,2020 vear during the year | 30,2021 01 June 30,2021 appreciation total investments | met assets

3 Months - 8,735,105 8,735,105 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%

6 Months - 6,010,000 5,953,000 57,000 56,016 56,061 45 5.13% 0.66%

12 Months 285,000 276,000 561,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total 285,000 15,021,105 15,249,105 57,000 56,016 56,061 45 5.73% 0.66%
Total - June 30, 2020 264,963 269,609 4,646 18.08% 19.67%

531 These carry yield ranging from 4.83% to 7.68% (2020: 7.29% to 11.98%) and are due to mature latest by September 23, 2021.
Government Securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds
Face value (Rupccs‘m 000) ‘ Rupees in '000 ‘ Market value as a. | Market value as
Purchased Disposed / Carrying value Unrealised
Issue date Tenor | AsatJuly duringthe | matured durin As at June as at June 30 Market value as at (dimintion) percentage of | a percentage of
1,200 ¢ ¢ 1 30,2000 | June30,2021 ODE total investments | net assets
year the year 2021 appreciation
November 5, 2020 2 year 75,000 75,000 0.00% 0.00%
September 19,2019 3 year 1,480,000 1,480,000 0.00% 0.00%
August 20, 2020 3 year 400,000 400,000 - - - 0.00% 0.00%
December 29,2016 5 year 25,000 - 25,000 26,894 25,026 (1,868) 2.56% 0.29%
July 12,2018 5 year 100,000 - 100,000 - - - 0.00% 0.00%
September 19, 2019 5 year 492,000 930,000 1,422,000 0.00% 0.00%
October 15, 2020 5 year 175,000 175,000 0.00% 0.00%
Total 617,000 3.060.000 3652000 25,000 26,894 25,026 (1.868) 256% __029%
637,943 644138 6,195 B.21% 47.01%
54.1 These carry yield ranging from 7.25% to 15.8% (2020: 7.65% to 12.10%) and are due to mature latest by December 29, 2021.
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55.1
56

5.6.1

57

58

Sukuk Certificates - listed

Asat | Purchased Disposed/ Carrying Market value Unrealised Marketvalue as a Market value as a | Investment as a
. matured | AsatJune 30, |valueasat . percentage of total
Name of Investee Company July 1, | during the . asat June 30, | appreciation as at percentage of net | percentage of
during the 2021 June 30, market value of L
2020 year 2021 June 30,2021 . assets total issue size
year 2021 investments
---Number of Certificat Rupees in '000 Percentag
Fertilizer
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 4 742
(Face value of Rs. 100,000 per certificate)
Power Generation and Distribution
Hub Power Company Limited 100 100
(Face value of 100,000 per certificate)
Hub Power Company Limited 385 385
(Face value of 100,000 per certificate)
K-Electric Ltd - Sukuk 150,000 150,000
(Face value of 5,000 per certificate)
Pakistan Energy Sukuk-1I 3,000 3,000
(Face value of 5,000 per certificate)
Total 842 153385 154227
Total - June 30, 2020 61,747 62,670 923 4.21% 4.58%
The cost of listed sukuks certificates as at June 30, 2021 is Nil (2020: Rs. 61.89 million)
Commercial papers
Face value (Rupees in '000) Rupees in '000 -eeneee- PeICENAGE --eneeeee
Name of nestee Company Asatluly Purshased Dlsposed./ Asat June Carrying value Market value asat Umeghéed Market value asa | Market value as
during the | matured during as at June 30, pp / p of |ap of
1,2020 30,2021 June 30,2021 L .
year the year 2021 (diminution) total investments | et assets
K- Electric Limited CP-5 10,000 10,000 -
K- Electric Limited CP-7 - 1,000 1,000 -
K- Electric Limited CP-13 - 232,000 232,000 -
K- Electric Limited CP-14 - 100,000 100,000 -
Total 10,000 333,000 343,000 - - - -
Total - June 30, 2020 9,836 9,836 0.66% 0.72%
This carry profit at the rate 0f 9.79% per annum (2020: 14.64%).
Government Securities - GOP Ijarah Sukuks
Face value (Rupees in '000) Rupees in '000 -----—-- Percentage -------- -
Name of Investee Company AsatJuly Pur.chased Dlsposed{ Asat June Carrying value Market value as at Unrez.llls.ed Market value as a| Market value as
during the | matured during as at June 30, appreciation / percentage of | a percentage of
1,2020 30,2021 June 30,2021 - .
year the year 2021 (diminution) | total investments |  net assets
----------- Percentage --------------
GoP [jarah Sukuk Certificates 340,000 340,000 - -
Total 340,000 340,000 -
Total - June 30, 2020 -
Deliverable Futures Contract
Shares Rupees in '000
Purchased Carrying value Unrealised Market value as a Market value as
Seript As at July . Disposed during [As at June ying Market value as at L percentage of | a percentage of
during the as at June 30, appreciation / X
1,2020 the year 30,2021 June 30,2021 o total invest-ments|  net assets
year 2021 (diminution)
Percentage
TRG P akistan Limited 1,271,500 1,271,500 - -
Unity F oods Limited 1,606,500 1,606,500 - -
Total - 2,878,000 2,878,000 -
Total - June 30, 2020 -
ABL-IF v
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5.9 Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of 2021 2020

investments classified as Financial assets at Note - Rupees in '000--------
fair value through profit or loss
Market value of investments 5.1,5.2,53,54,55&5.6 878,769 1,370,154
Carrying value of investments 51,52,53,54,55&5.6 (874,659) (1,364,422)
4,110 5,732
6 RECEIVABLE AGAINST MARGIN TRADING SYSTEM
These carry mark-up rate ranging from 8.5% to 15.51% per annum (2020: Nil) and are matured at the option of financee subject to maximum
period of 60 days.
2021 2020
7 INTEREST / PROFIT ACCRUED Note ~ - Rupees in '000--------
Interest / profit accrued on:
Bank balances 33,381 2,443
Term deposit receipt 1,473 -
Debt securities - Term Finance and Sukuk certificates 13,340 7,974
Government securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds 5 16,983
48,199 27,400
8 DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Security deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100
Security deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 183,182 36,720
Deposit in IPS account 234 2,317
Security deposit with Bond Automated Trading System 250 250
Other receivables 8.1 6,019 3,685
189,785 43,072
8.1 As per clause 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, payments made to collective investment schemes

(CISs) are exempt from withholding tax under section 151 and 150. However, withholding tax on profit on bank deposit paid to the Fund
was deducted by various withholding agents based on the interpretation issued by FBR vide letter C. no. 1(43) DG (WHT)/2008-VOL.II-
66417-R dated 12 May 2015 which requires every withholding agent to withhold income tax at applicable rates in case a valid exemption
certificate under section 159(1) issued by the concerned Commissioner of Inland Revenue (CIR) is not produced before him by the
withholdee. The tax withheld on profit amounts to Rs. 6.019 (2020: 3.685) million.

For this purpose, the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on behalf of various mutual funds (including the Funds being
managed by the Management Company) had filed a petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) challenging the above mentioned
interpretation of the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) which was decided by the SHC in favour of FBR. On January 28, 2016, the Board
of Directors of the Management Company passed a resolution by circulation, authorising all CISs to file an appeal in the Honourable
Supreme Court through their Trustees, to direct all persons being withholding agents, including share registrars and banks to observe the
provisions of clause 47B of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 without imposing any conditions at the
time of making any payment to the CISs being managed by the Management Company. Accordingly, a petition was filed in the Supreme
Court of Pakistan by the Funds together with other CISs (managed by the Management Company and other Asset Management Companies)
whereby the Supreme Court granted the petitioners leave to appeal from the initial judgement of the SHC. Pending resolution of the matter,
the amount of withholding tax deducted on profit received by the Fund bank deposits has been shown as other receivable as at June 30,
2021 as, in the opinion of the management, the amount of tax deducted at source will be refunded.

2021 2020
9 PAYABLE TO ABL ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED - Note  wemoeeee Rupees in '000---------

MANAGEMENT COMPANY - RELATED PARTY
Management fee payable 9.1 5,107 1,942
Punjab / Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration

of the Management Company 9.2 3,603 3,096
Federal Excise Duty payable on remuneration of the

Management Company 9.3 19,142 19,142
Accounting and operational charges payable 9.4 1,230 772
Selling and marketing expenses payable 9.5 747 3,090
Sales load payable 73 8

29,902 28,050

9.1 As per the amendments made in the NBFC Regulations, 2008 vide SRO 1160(1)/2015 dated 25 November 2015, the Management Company
is entitled to a remuneration equal to an amount not exceeding 1.5% of the average annual net assets in case of income schemes. Keeping
in view the maximum allowable threshold, the Management Company has charged its remuneration at the rate of 1.5% till Febuary 28,
2021 and 8% of gross earning subject to minimum floor of 0.5% of net assets and maximum cap of 1% of net assets (2020: 1.5%) per
annum of the average net assets of the Fund during the year ended 30 June 2021. The remuneration is payable to the Management Company
monthly in arrears.
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9.2 During the year, an amount of Rs. 4.287 million (2020: Rs 4.123 million) was charged on account of sales tax on management fee levied
through Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 at the rate of 16% (2020: 16%).

9.3 The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset Management Companies
(AMCs) as a result of which FED at the rate of 16 percent on the remuneration of the Management Company and sales load was applicable
with effect from June 13, 2013. The Management Company was of the view that since the remuneration was already subject to provincial
sales tax, further levy of FED would result in double taxation which did not appear to be the spirit of the law. Hence, on September 4, 2013
a constitutional petition was filed with the Sindh High Court (SHC) by the Management Company together with various other asset
management companies challenging the levy of FED.

With effect from July 1, 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by non-banking financial institutions dealing in services which are
subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the SHC passed an order whereby all notices, proceedings taken or pending, orders made, duty
recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the rendering or providing of services (to the extent as challenged
in any relevant petition) were set aside. In response to this, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed a Civil Petition for leave
to appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending adjudication.

In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED on remuneration of the Management Company
with effect from July 01, 2016. However, as a matter of abundant caution the provision for FED made for the period from June 13, 2013
till June 30, 2016 amounting to Rs 19.142 million is being retained in these financial statements of the Fund as the matter is pending before
the Supreme Court of Pakistan. Had the provision for FED not been made, the Net Asset Value of the Fund as at June 30, 2020 would have
been higher by Re 0.023 (2020: Re 0.129) per unit.

9.4 In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitled to charge fees and expenses related to
registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services, related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS).

Until June 19, 2019 there was a maximum cap of 0.1% of the average annual net assets of the scheme or actual whichever is less, for
allocation of such expense to the Fund. However, the SECP vide its SRO 639 dated June 20, 2019 removed the maximum cap of 0.1%.

The Management Company based on its own discretion has currently fixed a maximum capping of 0.1 percent of the average annual net
assets of the scheme for allocation of such expenses to the Fund.

9.5 The SECP has allowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and marketing expenses to all categories of open-end mutual
funds (except fund of funds) initially for a period of three years (i.e. from January 1, 2017 till December 31, 2019). The maximum cap of
selling and marketing expense was 0.4% per annum of the net assets of the Fund or actual expenses whichever is lower.

During year 2020, the SECP through its circular 11 dated July 5, 2019 has revised the conditions for charging of selling and marketing
expenses to a Fund. As per the revised guidelines, the maximum cap of 0.4% per annum has been lifted and now the asset management
company is required to set a maximum limit for charging of such expense to the Fund and the same should be approved by the Board of
Directors of the Management Company as part of annual plan. Furthermore, the time limit of three years has also been removed in the
revised conditions.

Accordingly, the Management Company based on its own discretion has currently determined a capping of 0.4% of the average annual
net assets of the fund for charging of selling and marketing expenses to the Fund and also approved by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

2021 2020
10 PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF Note S - Ty e'S P11
PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE - RELATED PARTY
Trustee fee payable 10.1 540 97
Sindh Sales Tax payable on trustee fee 10.2 70 13
Settlement charges payable 48 19

658 129

10.1 The Trustee is entitled to monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust Deed at the rate of
0.075% (2020: 0.075%) per annum of net assets. Accordingly the Fund has charged trustee fee at the above mentioned rate during the year.

10.2  During the year, an amount of Rs 0.287 million (2020: Rs. 0.168 million) was charged on account of sales tax on remuneration of the
Trustee levied through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

11 PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE Not 20211{ 00 02"2"
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN ote e upees n GHG=mmmmmmmeme
Annual fee payable 11.1 589 344

11.1 In accordance with the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) is required to pay annual fee to the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Effective from July 1, 2019, the SECP vide SRO No. 685(1)/2019 dated June 28, 2019, revised the rate of annual fee to 0.02% of net assets,
applicable on all categories of CISs. Accordingly, the Fund has charged the SECP Fee at the rate of 0.02% of net assets during the pervious
& current year.
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2021 2020

12 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES D\ (- —— Rupees in '000-----------
Auditors' remuneration payable 331 312
NCCPL charges payable 500 -
Printing charges payable 137 142
Legal fee payable 114 -
Brokerage payable 730 517
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.1 4,183 4,183
Withholding tax payable 14,742 19,279

20,737 24,433

12.1  As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan, the Sindh Workers” Welfare Fund Act, 2014 (SWWF Act) had
been passed by the Government of Sindh in May 2015 as a result of which every industrial establishment located in the Province of Sindh,
the total income of which in any accounting year is not less than Rs 0.50 million, was required to pay Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund (SWWF)
in respect of that year a sum equal to two percent of such income. The matter was taken up by the MUFAP with the Sindh Revenue Board
(SRB) collectively on behalf of various asset management companies and their CISs whereby it was contested that mutual funds should
be excluded from the ambit of the SWWF Act as these were not industrial establishments but were pass through investment vehicles and
did not employ workers. The SRB held that mutual funds were included in the definition of financial institutions as per the Financial
Institution (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 and were, hence, required to register and pay SWWF under the SWWF Act. Thereafter,
MUFAP had taken up the matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry to have CISs / mutual funds excluded from the applicability of SWWF.
In view of the above developments regarding the applicability of SWWF on CISs/mutual funds, the MUFAP recommended that as a matter
of abundant caution provision in respect of SWWF should be made on a prudent basis with effect from the date of enactment of the SWWF
Act, 2014 (i.e. starting from May 21, 2015).

The Fund has made provision for SWWF from May 21, 2015 till June 30, 2017 amounting to Rs 4.183 million as the decision in this respect
is pending to date. The Fund has not made any provision for SWWF after July 01, 2017 as the registered office of the Management Company
of the Fund had been relocated from the Province of Sindh to the Province of Punjab.

Had the provision for SWWF not been recorded in the financial statements of the Fund for the period from May 21, 2015 to June 30, 2021,
the net asset value of the Fund as at June 30, 2021 would have been higher by Re. 0.005 per unit (2020: Re 0.028 ).

Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2021, SRB through its letter dated August 12, 2021 has intimated MUFAP that the mutual funds
do not qualify as Financial Institutions / Industrial Establishments and are therefore, not liable to pay the SWWF contributions. This
development was discussed at MUFAP level and has also been taken up with the SECP and all the Asset Management Companies, in
consultation with SECP, have reversed the cumulative provision for SWWF recognised in the financial statements of the Funds. The SECP
has given its concurrence for prospective reversal of provision for SWWF. Accordingly, going forward, no provision for SWWF would
be recognised in the financial statements of the Fund.

13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020.

2021 2020
14 INTEREST / PROFIT EARNED ------——--Rupees in '000----------
Interest / profit on:
Savings and term deposits 100,854 69,863
Debt securities - Term Finance and Sukuk certificates 37,069 77,515
Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds 60,019 62,772
Margin Trading System 27,835 -
Letter of placement 6,205 -
Commercial Papers 4,406 11,848
236,388 221,998
15 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Annual audit fee 285 265
Half yearly review of condensed interim financial statements 154 135
Sales tax 22 32
Out of pocket expenses 50 216
511 648

16 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Total Expense Ratio (TER) of the Fund as at June 30, 2021 is 1.56% (2020: 2.71%) which includes 0.18% (2020: 0.28%) representing
government levies on the Fund such as provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund, sales taxes, federal excise duties, annual fee to the
SECP, etc. This ratio is within the maximum limit of 2% prescribed under the NBFC Regulations for a collective investment scheme
categorised as a income scheme.
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17 TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause (99) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or
unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders as cash dividend. Furthermore, as per Regulation 63 of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute not less than 90% of its accounting income for the
year derived from sources other than capital gains as reduced by such expenses as are chargeable thereon to the unitholders.

Since the management intends to distribute the required minimum percentage of income earned by the Fund for the year ended June 30,
2020 to the unit holders in the manner as explained above no provision for taxation has been made in these financial statements during
the year.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

18 EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as, in the opinion of the management, the determination of cumulative weighted average
number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

19 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

19.1 Connected persons include ABL Asset Management Company being the Management Company, the Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited being the Trustee, other collective investment schemes managed by the Management Company, any entity in which the
Management Company, its CISs or their connected persons have material interest, any person or company beneficially owning directly
or indirectly ten percent or more of the capital of the Management Company or the net assets of the Fund, directors and their close family
members and key management personnel of the Management Company.

19.2  Transactions with connected persons are executed on an arm's length basis and essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee on
account of managing the affairs of the Fund, sales load, other charges and distribution payments to connected persons. The transactions
with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and at terms determined in accordance with market rates.

19.3  Remuneration to the Management Company of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, 2008
and the Trust Deed.

19.4  Remuneration to the Trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, 2008 and the Trust
Deed.

19.5  Accounting and operational charges are charged to the Fund by the Management Company subject to the maximum prescribed Total
Expense Ratio.

19.6  The details of transactions carried out by the Fund with connected persons during the year are as follows:
2021 2020

---------Rupees in '000---------
ABL Asset Management Company Limited (Management Company)

Remuneration charged 26,796 25,769
Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 4,287 4,123
Accounting and operational charges 2,068 3,658
Selling and marketing charges 3,353 6,870
Issue of 30,903,552 (2020: 51,417,392) units 314,577 527,734
Redemption of 24,568,144 (2020: 62,102,045) units 252,000 660,000
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (Trustee)
Remuneration of the Trustee 2,207 1,295
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 287 168
Settlement charges incurred 748 25
Allied Bank Limited
Profit on bank deposits 21,260 6,730
Bank charges 191 41
Ibrahim Holdings (Pvt) Limited (Parent of Asset Management Company)
Issue of 302,582,471 (2020: Nil) units 3,130,558 -
ABL Financial Planning Fund - Conservative Allocation Plan
Issue of 484,242 (2020: 1,527,955) units 4,884 15,389
Redemption of 3,817,272 (2020: 2,537,093) units 38,710 28,450
ABL Financial Planning Fund - Active Allocation Plan
Issue of 1,512,517 (2020: 4,386,092) units 15,419 45,194
Redemption of 3,095,734 (2020: 5,855,055) units 31,648 61,813
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2021 2020
------—--—--Rupees in '000----------
ABL Financial Planning Fund - Strategic Allocation Plan

Issue 0f 2,502,713 (2020: 5,983,258) units 25,516 61,666
Redemption of 3,446,982 (2020: 32,337,427) units 35,270 340,130
CONNECTED PERSONS

Sefam Pvt Limited (Bareeze)

Issue of 234,713,265 (2020: Nil) units 2,399,689 -
Redemption of 114,633,102 (2020: Nil) units 1,158,597 -

DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Sheikh Mukhtar Ahmed (Director of the Management Company)

Issue of 3,604,736 (2020: 2,153,390) units 36,469 23,355
Redemption of Nil (2020: 2,878,357) units - 29,017
Muhammad Waseem Mukhtar (Director of the Management Company)

Issue of 79,785 (2020: 218,487) units 805 2,201
Redemption of Nil (2020: 2,022,070) units - 20,384

Mohammd Naeem Mukhtar (Director of the Management Company)
Issue of 26,979 (2020: Nil) units 272 -

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Alee Khalid Ghaznavi (CEO of the Company)

Issue of 992,575 (2020: Nil) units 10,236 -

Redemption of 992,575 (2020: Nil) units 10,048 -
19.7  The detail of balances outstanding at the period / year end with connected persons are as follows:

2021 2020

------—-—-Rupees in '000----------
ABL Asset Management Company Limited (Management Company)

Remuneration payable 5,107 1,942
Punjab sales tax payable on remuneration of the Management Company 3,603 3,096
Federal excise duty payable on remuneration of the Management Company 19,142 19,142
Accounting and operational Charges Payable 1,230 772
Selling and Marketing Expenses Payable 747 3,090
Sales load and transfer load payable 73 8
Outstanding 58,716,852 (2020: 52,381,444) units 592,553 528,055
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (Trustee)

Remuneration payable 540 97
Sindh sales tax on remuneration of Trustee 70 13
Settlement charges payable 48 19
Security deposits refundable 100 100
Deposit in IPS account 1,035 2,567
Allied Bank Limited

Profit recieveable on saving accounts 13,717 601
Bank Balance 5,047,864 51,457
Ibrahim Holdings (Pvt) Limited (Parent of Asset Management Company)

Outstanding 302,582,471 (2020: Nil) units 3,053,572 -
ABL Financial Planning Fund - Conservative Allocation Plan

Outstanding 8,916,050 (2020: 12,249,080) units 89,978 123,482
ABL Financial Planning Fund - Active Allocation Plan

Outstanding 1,755,246 (2020: 3,338,462) units 17,713 33,655
ABL Financial Planning Fund - Strategic Allocation Plan

Outstanding 2,770,031 (2020: 3,714,300) units 27,954 37,444
CONNECTED PERSONS

Sefam Pvt Limited (Bareeze)

Outstanding 120,080,163 (2020: Nil) units 1,211,813 -
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2021 2020
----------Rupees in '000----------
DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Sheikh Mukhtar Ahmed (Director of the Management Company)

Outstanding 6,483,093 (2020: 2,878,356) units 65,425 29,017
Muhammad Waseem Mukhtar (Director of the Management Company)
Outstanding 2,101,854 (2020: 2,022,069) units 21,211 20,384

Mohammd Naeem Mukhtar (Director of the Management Company)
Outstanding 710,747 (2020: 683,768) units 7,173 6,893

19.8  Other balances due to / from related parties / connected persons are included in the respective notes to the financial statements.

20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

2021
. At fair value
Atamortised through profit Total
cost
or loss
-=-=--=m-=m==-—-—--- Rupees in '000 -----------------—---
Financial assets
Bank balances 5,960,065 - 5,960,065
Investments - 978,769 978,769
Receivable against Margin Trading System - 1,356,897 1,356,897
Receivable against sale of units 208,520 - 208,520
Interest / profit accrued 48,199 - 48,199
Deposits and other receivables 183,766 - 183,766
6,400,550 2,335,666 8,736,216
2021
At amortised Total
cost
----------- Rupees in '000 -----------
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Management Company 29,902 29,902
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 658 658
Payable against redemption of units 45,189 45,189
Payable against purchase of investments 129,032 129,032
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,812 1,812
206,593 206,593
2020
At amortised At fair valuef
through profit Total
cost
or loss
------=m-=m---—-——-- Rupees in '000 -----------------—---
Financial assets
Bank balances 103,320 - 103,320
Investments - 1,370,154 1,370,154
Interest / profit accrued 27,400 - 27,400
Deposits and other receivables 39,387 - 39,387
170,107 1,370,154 1,540,261
2020
At amortised Total
cost
----------- Rupees in '000 -----------
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Management Company 28,050 28,050
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 129 129
Payable against redemption of units 55 55
Dividend payable / unclaimed dividend 2 2
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 971 971
29,207 29,207
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holders’ value. Risk is inherent in the Fund’s activities, but it
is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up to be performed based on limits established by the
Management Company, the constitutive documents of the Fund and the regulations and directives of the SECP. These limits reflect the
business strategy and market environment of the Fund as well as the level of the risk that the Fund is willing to accept. The Board of
Directors of the Management Company supervises the overall risk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed to market
risk, liquidity risk and credit risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

21.1 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages the market risk through diversification of the investment portfolio and by following the internal
guidelines established by the Investment Committee.

Market risk comprises of three types of risks: yield / interest rate risk, currency risk, and price risk.

(i) Yield / interest rate risk
Yield / interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2021, the Fund is exposed to such risk on its balances held with banks, investments in term
finance and sukuk certificates. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular basis to ensure
that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

a)  Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
Presently, the Fund holds KIBOR based term finance and sukuks certificates and accrued mark-up on balances with banks which
expose the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in applicable rates on the last repricing
date with all other variables held constant, the net income for the year and net assets of the Fund would have been higher/lower by
Rs. 67.578 million (2020: Rs. 5.499 million).

b)  Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

As at June 30, 2021, the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instrument that may expose the Fund to fair value interest rate risk.

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio, KIBOR rates and the rates announced by the Financial Markets Association of Pakistan

are expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2021 is not necessarily indicative of the

impact on the Fund's net assets of future movements in interest rates.

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
date.

The Fund's interest rate sensitivity related to financial assets and financial liabilities as at June 30, 2021 can be determined as follows:

2021
Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Effective More than Not e).(posed
interest rate Up to three three More than | . to yield/ Total
months and interest rate
(%) months one year .
up to one risk
year
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 5.00% - 8.50% 5,960,065 - - - 5,960,065
Investments 7.68% - 9.10% 156,061 25,026 797,682 - 978,769
Receivable against Margin Trading System 1,356,897 - - - 1,356,897
Receivable against sale of units - - - 208,520 208,520
Interest / profit accrued - - - 48,199 48,199
Deposits and other receivables - - - 183,766 183,766
7,473,023 25,026 797,682 440,485 8,736,216
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company Limited
- Management Company - - - 29,902 29,902
Payable to the Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 658 658
Payable against redemption of units - - - 45,189 45,189
Dividend payable - - - - -
Payable against purchase of investments - - - 129,032 129,032
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 1,812 1,812
- - - 206,593 206,593
On-balance sheet gap 7,473,023 25,026 797,682 233,892 8,529,623
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 7,473,023 25,026 797,682
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 7,473,023 7,498,049 8,295,731
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21.2

2020

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Effective More than Not e!_(posed
interest rate Up to three three More than | . to yield / Total
months and interest rate
(%) months one year .
up to one risk
year
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 5.00% - 7.00% 103,320 - - - 103,320
Investments 6.63% - 14.89% 9,836 716,180 644,138 - 1,370,154
Interest / profit accrued - - - 27,400 27,400
Deposits and other receivables - - - 39,387 39,387
113,156 716,180 644,138 66,787 1,540,261
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Management Company - - - 28,050 28,050
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 129 129
Payable against redemptions of units - - - 55 55
Dividend payable / unclaimed dividend - - - 2 2
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 971 971
- - - 29,207 29,207
On-balance sheet gap 113,156 716,180 644,138 37,580 1,511,054
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 113,156 716,180 644,138
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 113,156 829,336 1,473,474

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign

exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign currencies and hence is not exposed to such risk.
(iii)  Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the

individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equity instruments decreases as a result of changes in the level of equity indices

and the value of individual stocks. The Fund does not have any investment in equity securities as of June 30, 2021.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligation in full as they fall due
or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to daily settlement of equity securities and daily redemptions at the option of unit holders. The Fund's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under
both normal and stressed conditions. The Fund's policy is, therefore, to invest the majority of its assets in investments that are traded in
an active market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess of ten percent of the units
in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for being processed on the next business day. Such procedure
would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. The Fund did

not withhold any redemptions during the year.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based
on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates. However, the assets and liabilities that are
receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have been included in the maturity grouping of one month:
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2021

More than More than

one month three More than Financial
Within 1 one year and More than 5 instruments
and upto  months and . Total
month upto five years with no fixed
three upto one .
years maturity
months year
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 5,960,065 - - - - - 5,960,065
Investments 100,000 56,062 25,026 797,681 - 978,769
Receivable against Margin Trading System 1,356,897 - - - - - 1,356,897
Receivable against sale of units 208,520 - - - - - 208,520
Interest / profit accrued 48,199 - - - - - 48,199
Deposits and other receivables 234 - - - - 183,532 183,766
7,673,915 56,062 25,026 797,681 - 183,532 8,736,216
Financial liabilities
Payable to the ABL Asset Management
Company Limited - Management Company 29,902 - - - - - 29,902
Payable to the Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 658 - - - - - 658
Payable against redemptions of units 45,189 - - - - - 45,189
Dividend payable - - - - - - -
Payable against purchase of investments 129,032 - - - - - 129,032
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,812 - - - - - 1,812
206,593 - - - - - 206,593
Net financial assets 7,467,322 56,062 25,026 797,681 - 183,532 8,529,623
2021
More than  More than More than Financial
Within 1 one month three one year and More than 5 instruments
and upto  months and . Total
month upto five years with no fixed
three upto one .
months year years maturity
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 103,320 - - - - - 103,320
Investments - 978,769 716,180 644,138 - - 2,339,087
Receivable against sale of investments - - - - - - -
Interest / profit accrued 27,400 - - - - - 27,400
Deposits and other receivables 2,317 - - - - 37,070 39,387
133,037 978,769 716,180 644,138 - 37,070 2,509,194
Financial liabilities
Payable to the ABL Asset Management
Company Limited - Management Company 28,050 - - - - - 28,050
Payable to the Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 129 - - - - - 129
Payable against redemptions of units 55 - - - - - 55
Dividend payable / unclaimed dividend 2 - - - - - 2
Payable against purchase of investments - - - - - - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 971 - - - - - 971
29,207 - - - - - 29,207
Net financial assets 103,830 978,769 716,180 644,138 - 37,070 2,479,987

21.3 Credit risk

21.3.1 Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by failing to discharge its
obligation as it falls due. The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk:
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2021 2020

Balance as
. Balance as .
per Maximum Maximum
per statement
statement of exposure to exposure to
. of assets and o e
assets and  credit risk e erere credit risk
e liabilities
liabilities
------------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------m-mmmmmmmemm
Bank balances 5,960,065 5,960,065 103,320 103,320
Investments in debt instruments 978,769 797,682 1,370,154 446,571
Receivable against Margin Trading System 1,356,897 1,356,897 - -
Receivable against sale of units 208,520 - - -
Interest / profit accrued 48,199 48,194 27,400 10,417
Deposits and other receivables 183,766 183,766 39,387 39,387
8,736,216 8,346,604 1,540,261 599,695

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2021 is the carrying amount of the financial assets.
21.3.2 Credit quality of financial assets

The Fund's significant credit risk (excluding credit risk relating to settlement of equity securities) arises mainly on account of its placements
in banks and mark-up accrued thereon, investments in term finance and sukuk certificates. The credit rating profile of balances with banks
and investment in TFCs/sukuk is as follows:

% of financial assets exposed

Rating to credit risk
2021 2020

Banks / Commercial Paper

57.68% 4.96%
AAA

1.96% 1.72%

AA+
AA 11.76% 0.08%
AA- - 0.07%
A+ 0.01% 0.03%
A-1+ - 0.64%

71.41% 7.50%
Term Finance Certificates / Sukuk certificates
AAA - -
AA+ 0.84% 7.03%
AA 3.05% 3.45%
AA- 1.17% 19.04%
A+ 4.30% -
A-1+ - -

9.36% 29.52%

22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or requirement to curtail
materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of assets and liabilities
date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not to be significantly different from the respective
book values.

Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Fund to classify assets using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
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Level 1 : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 :inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 :inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, the Fund held the following financial instruments measured at fair values:

2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in '000

At fair value through profit or loss

Term finance certificates - unlisted - 797,682 - 797,682
Term deposit receipts - 100,000 - 100,000
Govemment securities - Market Treasury Bills - 56,061 - 56,061
Govemment securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds - 25,026 - 25,026
Commercial paper* - 25,026 - 25,026
- 978,769 - 978,769
2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rupees in '000
At fair value through profit or loss

Term finance certificates - unlisted - 383,901 - 383,901
Corporate sukuk certificates - 62,670 - 62,670
Govemment securities - Market Treasury Bills - 269,609 - 269,609
Govemment securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds - 644,138 - 644,138
Commercial paper* - 9,836 - 9,836
- 1,370,154 - 1,370,154
* The valuation of commercial papers has been done based on amortisation of commercial paper to its fair value as per the guidelines given
in Circular 33 of 2012 since the residual maturity of this investment is less than six months and are placed with counterparties which have
high credit rating.

23 UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by redeemable units. These units are entitled to dividends and to payment of a proportionate share
based on the Fund's Net Asset Value per unit on the redemption date. The relevant movements are shown in the 'Statement of Movement
in Unit Holders' Fund'.

The Fund has no restriction on the subscription and redemption of units. As required under the NBFC Regulations, 2008 every open end
scheme shall maintain fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs 100 million at all times during the life of the scheme. The Fund has
historically maintained and complied with the requirement of minimum fund size at all times.

The Fund's objectives when managing unit holders' funds are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue
to provide returns to the unit holders and to maintain a strong base of assets to meet unexpected losses or opportunities.

In accordance with the risk management policies as stated in note 21, the Fund endeavors to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate
investment avenues while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions, such liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments
or short-term borrowings, where necessary.
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24 UNIT HOLDING PATTERN OF THE FUND

2021 2020
Investment Investment
Number of unit amount Percentage of Number of amount Percentage of
holders (Rupees in total unit holders (Rupees in total

Category '000) '000)
Individuals 1,740 2,354,508 27.65% 1,285 454,676 30.50%
Associated Companies / Directors 6 814,835 9.57% 6 772,037 51.78%
Insurance Companies 2 1,636 0.02% 2 12,588 0.84%
Retirement Funds 30 770,809 9.05% 20 230,268 15.45%
Public Limited Companies 16 4,529,177 53.18% 9 7,912 0.53%
Others 6 45,164 0.53% 5 13,452 0.90%

1,800 8,516,129 100.00% 1,327 1,490,933 100.00%

25 LIST OF TOP TEN BROKERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID

2021 2020
Name of broker Percent.ag.e of Name of broker Percent.ag'e of
commission commission
paid paid
Next Capital Ltd 34.03% Invest One Markets Ltd 32.37%
JS Global Capital Ltd 28.53% Optimus Markets (Pvt) Limited 19.51%
Continental Exchange (PVT) Ltd 17.05% Paramount Capital (Pvt.) Ltd 14.68%
Optimus Markets (Pvt) Limited 5.91% Next Capital Ltd 5.49%
Invest One Markets Ltd 5.28% BIPL Securities Ltd 4.56%
KASB Securities Ltd 3.94% Vector Capital (Pvt.) Ltd 3.90%
Icon Securities (Pvt.) Ltd 2.93% Icon Securities (Pvt.) Ltd 3.87%
Arif Habib Ltd 0.82% JS Global Capital Ltd 3.08%
Paramount Capital 0.74% Curmrency MKT Associates (Pvt.) Ltd 2.97%
Magenta Capital (Pvt.) Ltd 0.34% Pearl Securities Ltd 2.68%

26 DETAILS OF MEMBERS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Following are the details in respect of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund:

Name I Designation |1 Qualification |1 Overall experience
Mr. Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Chief Executive Officer MBA 20
Mr. Saqib Matin CFO & Company Secretary FCA & FPFA 22
Mr. Fahad Aziz Head of Fixed Income MBA 15
Mr. Ali Ahmed Tiwana Head of Equity CIMA 11
Mr. Muhammad Tahir Saeed Head of Risk Management CFA 9
Mr. Abdul Rehman Tahir Fund Manager - Fixed Income MBA & CFA 10
Mr. M. Abdul Hayee Fund Manager - Equity MBA & CFA 13
Mr. M. Umair Altaf Deputy Head of Research ACCA & CFA 6

27 NAME AND QUALIFICATION OF THE FUND MANAGER

Name Designation Qualification Other Funds managed by the
Fund Manager
Fahad Aziz Fund Manager MBA - Finance ABL Cash Fund and

Govemment Securities Fund
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28 MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The 64th, 65th, 66th and 67th Board of Directors meetings were held on August 18, 2020, October 27, 2020, February 11, 2021 and April
12,2021, respectively.

Information in respect of attendance by the directors and other persons in the meetings is given below:

S.No. Name Number of meetings Meetings not attended
Held Attended | Leavegranted
1 Sheikh Mukhtar Ahmed 4 4 - -
2 Mohammad Nacem Mukhtar 4 3 1 64
3 Muhammad Waseem Mukhtar 4 3 1 65
4 TahirHasan Qureshi * 2 - - 2 64 &65
5 Muhammad Kamran Shehzad 4 4 - -
6 PervaizIqbal Butt 4 4 - -
7 Mr. Aizid Razzaq Gill ** 2 2 - -
8 Saim Shahid Hussain*** 1 1 - -
9  Alee Khalid Ghaznavi (Chief Executive Officer) 4 4 - -
Other persons
10 Saqib Matin**** 4 4 - -

*  Mr. Tahir Hassan Qureshi resigned on December 31, 2020

**  Mr. Aizid Razzaq Gill has been appointed as director with effect from January 01, 2021
*#*% Ms. Saira Shahid Hussain has been elected as Director in 13th AGM dated March 31, 2021
**%* Mr. Saqib Matin attended the meetings as Company Secretary.

29 RATING OF THE FUND AND THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has determined the asset manager rating of the Management Company of AM2++ (2020: AM2++
on December 31, 2019) on December 31, 2020. The rating reflects the Company’s experienced management team, structured investment
process and sound quality of systems and processes.

Furthermore, VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has upgraded the stability rating of the Fund to "A+(f)" (2020: "A(f)" on January 20,
2020) on December 31, 2020.

30 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-classified and re-arranged in these financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate comparison
and to conform with changes in presentation in the current year. No significant rearrangements or reclassifications have been made in these
financial statements during the current year.

31 GENERAL

31.1  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.
31.2  Units have been rounded off to the nearest decimal place.

31.3  Impact of COVID-19

A novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) that first surfaced in China was classified as a pandemic by the World Health Organization on
March 11, 2020. Third wave of the strain was on peak during first quarter of 2021 impacting countries globally. However due to effective
vaccinations and measures taken to contain the further spread of the virus, including lock downs, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing,
and closures of nonessential services, the spread was controlled in second quarter of 2021.

The management is of the view that COVID-19 pandemic has not materially affected the financial performance of the Company as the
business activities of the Company remains intact. Keeping in view of the latest updates regarding the pandemic, future effects cannot be
predicted. Management will continue to monitor the potential impact and will take all steps possible to mitigate any effects.
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31.4  Operational risk management

The Management Company is closely monitoring the situation and has invoked required actions to ensure safety and security of the staff
and an uninterrupted service to the customers. Business Continuity Plans (BCP) for respective areas are in place and tested. The Management
Company has significantly enhanced monitoring for all cyber security risk during these times from its information security protocols. The
remote work capabilities were enabled for critical staff and related risk and control measures were assessed to make sure they are fully
protected using virtual private network (“VPN”) connections. Further, the Management Company has also ensured that its remote access
systems are sufficiently resilient to any unwanted cyber-attacks.

32 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management Company on 25 August 2021.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

S i

Saqib Matin Alee Khalid Ghraznavi Pervaiz IqbalButt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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DISCLOSURE OF PROXY VOTING

The Board of Directors of ABL Asset Management Company Limited (the Management Company of the fund) have overall responsibility for the
implementation of Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures which is available on Management Company’s website (www.ablamc.com). During the
financial year, the Management Company on behalf of the Fund did not participate in 38 shareholders' meeting. Moreover, details of summarized

proxies voted are as follows:

Resolutions

For

Against

Abstain

Reason for Abstaining

Number

(%ages)
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CREDIT QUALITY OF PORTFOLIO (% OF TOTAL ASSETS)
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For Information on ABL AMC’s Funds, please visit

‘\1 www.ablamc.com  or 0800-22526
or visit any Allied Bank Branch




